ON 1.35

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERM, SUPREME COURT

By

Chief Depyty Clerk

BILL H. HEWETT,

Petitioner,

DCA Case No. 90-1724

VS. SUPREME COURT CASE NO.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON
PUBLIC DEFENDER
SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

MICHAEL S. BECKER
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER
FL BAR # 0267082
112 Orange Avenue, Suite A
Daytona Beach, FL 32114
Phone: 904/252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER

#

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On May 3, 1990, an affidavit was filed alleging Petitioner had violated his probation by failing to make restitution and failing to pay public defender liens and court (R 36) Appellant had earlier been placed on probation for a period of two years for the offense of grand theft. On August 10, 1990, a violation of probation hearing was conducted before the Honorable Warren Edwards, Circuit Judge. 1-35) At this hearing, Petitioner testified in his own behalf concerning his employment and his ability to make restitution and cost payments. (R 1-17) At the conclusion of Petitioner's testimony, the trial court initially found him guilty of the violation, but set this aside since it was proven that Petitioner did not have the ability to make the payments. (R 19-20)Despite this, and over Petitioner's objection, the trial court extended Petitioner's probation for a period of two years and waived all supervision costs but reimposed the restitution. (R

33-34) There is no order finding Petitioner to be in violation of his probation. (R 52)

Petitioner filed a timely notice of appeal to the District Court of Appeal, Fifth District, on August 15, 1990. (R 57-58) Petitioner was adjudged insolvent and the Office of the Public Defender was appointed to represent him on appeal. (R 63-64, 65-66) On appeal, Petitioner argued that unless a trial court finds that a probationer has willfully violated his probation, there is no authority for extending the probation even with the probationer's consent. In <a href="Hewett v. State">Hewett v. State</a>, 16 FLW D2687 (Fla. 5th DCA October 17, 1991), the Court affirmed Petitioner's judgment and sentence. Petitioner filed a timely motion for rehearing and or certification which was denied on November 20, 1991. Petitioner filed his notice to invoke discretionary jurisdiction on December 20, 1991.

### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in Hewett v. State, 16 FLW D2687 (Fla. 5th DCA October 17, 1991) directly conflicts with the decision of this Honorable Court in Clark v. State, 579 So.2d 109 (Fla. 1991). In Clark, this Court held that:

Absent proof of violation, the Court cannot change an order of probation or community control, by enhancing the terms thereof.

In the instant case, although the trial court found no willful violation of probation, it nevertheless extended

Petitioner's probation for two years. This decision cannot be squared with the decision of this court in Clark, and thus conflict clearly exists.

#### **ARGUMENT**

THE DECISION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN <u>HEWETT V. STATE</u>, **16** FLW D2687 (Fla. 5th DCA October 17, 1991) DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION BY THIS HONORABLE COURT IN <u>CLARK V. STATE</u>, **579 So.2d 109** (Fla. **1991) SO** AS TO PERMIT THIS COURT **TO EXERCISE ITS** DISCRETIONARY **JURISDICTION AND ACCEPT** THE INSTANT **CASE** FOR REVIEW.

At a hearing on an alleged violation of probation,
Petitioner presented evidence that his failure to pay restitution
and court costs was not willful in that he did not have the
present ability to make these payments. Without making any
specific finding that Petitioner willfully violated the terms of
his probation, the trial court entered an order extending his
probation for a period of two years and reinstated the
restitution condition. On appeal, Petitioner argued that a
period of probation cannot be extended absent a specific finding
of a willful violation of probation. The Fifth District Court of
Appeal rejected this argument and held that Section 946.06(4),
Florida Statutes (1984) permits a trial court to extend a term of
probation for a non-willful failure to pay previously imposed
financial obligations.

In <u>Clark v. State</u>, 579 So.2d **109** (Fla. **1991)**, this Court dealt with the issue of enhancing the terms of a previously ordered term of probation. This court noted:

Section 948.06, Florida Statutes (1987) provides the sole means by which the court may place additional terms on a previously entered order of probation or community control. Before probation or

community control may be enhanced,
either by extension of the period or by
addition of terms, a violation of
probation or community control must be
formally charged and the probationer
must be brought before the court and
advised of the charge following the
procedures of section 948.06. Absent
proof of a violation, the court cannot
chancre an order of probation or
community control by enhancing the terms
thereof, even if the defendant has
agreed in writing with his probation
officer to allow such a modification and
has waived notice and hearing.

Id. at 110-111. (emphasis added) Despite this clear statement, the District Court of Appeal chose to ignore it. In Hoffman v. Jones, 280 So.2d 431 (Fla. 1973), this Court held that a District Court of Appeal had no authority to overrule or ignore controlling precedent of the Supreme Court. To do so would be to create chaos and uncertainty in the judicial forum. The failure of the District Court of Appeal below to follow the clear dictates of this court's opinion in Clark creates conflict. Pursuant to Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, this court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to solve this express and direct conflict between the instant case and this Honorable Court's opinion in Clark v. State.

## **CONCLUSION**

BASED **UPON** the foregoing reasons and authorities, this Honorable Court should exercise its discretionary review on the basis of direct and express conflict with this court's previous opinion in Clark v. State, **579 So.2d 109** (Fla. **1991).**