045 w/app

FILED

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

1992

Chief Deputy Clerk

BILL HEWETT,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 79, 153 DCA NO. 90-1724

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

ASSISTANTMARSCHNEY GENERAL ASSISTAN ATTOR Fla. Bar # 841160 210 N. Palmetto Avenue Suite 447 Daytona Beach, FL 32114 (904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

##

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

There is no conflict between the instant case and <u>Clark v. State</u>, 579 So.2d 109 (Fla. 1991). The record reflects that the trial court followed the procedure set forth in Clark, supra.

The record reflects that the State tendered proof of the defendant's probation violation, and that the trial court did find that the defendant willfully violated his probation.

The opinion in <u>Clark</u>, supra, did not address the specific legal question raised and addressed in the instant **case**. The instant **case** involves an interpretation of section 948.06(4), Florida Statutes (1989), and not the <u>procedure</u> the trial court must follow in order to extend or modify a defendant's probation or community control.

### ARGUMENT

### POINT ON APPEAL

WHETHER THE **DECISION** OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FIFTH DISTRICT, IN THE **CASE SUB JUDICE** IS **IN** DIRECT CONFLICT WITH THIS COURT'S DECISION IN <u>CLARK V. STATE</u>, 579 SO.2D 109 (FLA. 1991).

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in Hewett v. State, 16 FLW D2687 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991), is not in conflict with this Court's decision in Clark v. State, 579 So.2d 109 (Fla. 1991), for the following reasons. First, in Clark, supra, this Court held that modification of a defendant's probation or community control could not be based solely on the defendant's written agreement to the modification. Clark, supra at 111. This Court held that in order for the modifications to be legal, three requirements had to be satisfied; to-wit: 1. The violation of community control must be formally charged; 2. The probationer must be brought before the court and advised of the 3. Proof of the violation must be tendered by the charge; and State [if the probationer denies the charge]. Clark, supra at 110-111. In the instant case, a formal charge was filed (R. 36); a violation of probation hearing was held an August 10, 1990 (R. 1-35); and proof that the defendant had failed to pay the ordered restitution and costs, and that he had the ability to pay something was tendered by the State (R. 1-15). Accordingly, the requirements of Clark, supra, were in fact met in this case.

Second, contrary to the petitioner's patently false assertion, the trial court did find that the petitioner willfully violated his probation. The trial court found,

THE COURT: The Court's feeling he does have the ability to pay something. That he has made no effort with the exception of the three supervisory payments, and that the probation will be extended for two years.

It's under the same terms **as** it was, and it's noted that the probation office will waive those payments, the supervisory payments.. Anything further? [Emphasis added].

(R. 33-34).

The trial court also  $\underline{\text{did}}$  enter a written judgment order finding that the petitioner had violated his probation. (R. 53-56).

Finally, there is no conflict between the instant case and Clark, supra, as the two cases address two entirely different questions of law. In Holcombe v. State, 553 So. 2d 1337 (Fla. 1st DCA 1989), and Ford v. State, 553 So. 2d 1340 (Fla. 1st DCA 1989), the First District Court of Appeal held that section 948.06, Florida Statutes was the sole means [procedure] by which the trial court could extend or modify a defendant's probation or community control. The court certified to this Court, in both cases, whether section 948.06, Florida Statutes was the sole means by which the trial court could modify a defendant's probation or community control. Holcombe, supra at 1340; Ford, In Clark v. State, 559 So.2d 1272 (Fla. 2nd DCA supra at 1341. 1990), the Second District Court of Appeal rejected the First District's holdings in Holcombe, supra, and Ford, supra, and held that the trial court could modify a defendant's probation or community control based on a defendant's written agreement, where the agreement occurs prior to the filing of an affidavit af

violation. <u>Clark v. State</u>, 559 So.2d at 1273. In this Court's opinion in <u>Clark</u>, supra, this Court simply resolved the question as to the <u>procedure</u> that must be followed in order for the trial court to extend or modify a defendant's probation. As noted above, that procedure was followed in the instant case.

the instant case, the Fifth District decided specifically address the question raised by the respective parties, principally through notices of supplemental authority, as to whether the trial court had to find that the defendant "willfully" violated his probation, where the violations alleged were that the defendant had failed to pay restitution or costs. The Fifth District properly interpreted paragraph four of section 948.06(4), Florida Statutes (1989), in ruling that a trial court need not find that a defendant willfully violated his probation is order to extend or modify a defendant's probation. This Court's opinion in Clark, supra, did not even begin to address this specific legal question. Therefore, there is no conflict between the instant case and this Court's opinion in Clark, supra, and this Court should refuse to accept jurisdiction in the instant case.

### CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments and authorities presented herein, respondent respectfully prays this honorable court to refuse to accept jurisdiction in the instant case.